Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the MNAA and MPC B NA

Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees Nashville
International
Airport:

Date: June 11, 2025 Location: Metropolitan Nashville Airport Authority
Tennessee Boardroom
Time: 9:00a.m.

Committee Members Present: Jimmy Granbery, Committee Chair; Bobby Joslin,
Committee Vice Chair; Nancy Sullivan

Committee Members Absent: None
Other Board Members Present: Joycelyn Stevenson, Glenda Glover, Glenn Farner
MNAA Staff & Guests Present: Doug Kreulen, Cindy Barnett, Lisa Lankford, Trish Saxman,

Marge Basrai, Adam Bouchard, John Cooper, Kristen
Deuben, Aaron Flake, KC Hampton, Traci Holton, Eric
Johnson, Roman Keselman, Lisa Leyva, Carrie Logan, Rachel
Moore, Ted Morrissey, Brandi Porter, Robert Ramsey, and
Steven Woods

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Granbery called the Joint Meeting of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic

Planning (Operations) Committee to order at 9:00 a.m. pursuant to Public Notice dated June 6, 2025.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Chair Granbery stated there were no public comment requests received.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chair Granbery asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the May 14, 2025 Operations
Committee meeting. Commissioner Sullivan made a motion, and Vice Chair Joslin seconded the motion.
Chair Granbery asked Ms. Saxman for a roll call:
Chair Granbery — Yes
Vice Chair Joslin — Yes

Commissioner Sullivan - Yes

Page 1 of 7



Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

The motion passed with a vote of 3 to 0.

CHAIR’S REPORT

Chair Granbery congratulated President Kreulen and the MNAA Staff on the opening of the new

interchange. He knows it has been a tremendous amount of work in keeping everyone moving. He

realizes that there will always be confusion and complaints. But overall, it is a great accomplishment,

all the work, the number of passengers coming into BNA, and the amount of work that is not only

day-to-day operations. He also thanked Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) for their

work and the Board members for their leadership and approval of the incentive to get it done early.

The Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI) turned out well.

Vice Chair Joslin stated with all due respect it took Ms. Holton 22 years to get it done.

ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

1.

New Horizon NES Invoices (Concourse A & TARI)

President Kreulen introduced Traci Holton, VP, New Horizon, to brief the Commissioners on the
Component Guaranteed Maximum Price 3 (CGMP3) for Central Ramp Expansion. Ms. Holton
stated the future New Horizon Nashville Electric System {NES) Invoices are for the Concourse A
and TARI projects. She stated the existing NES service to airport runs from pole farm, next to old
Cell Lot, and needs to be relocated to make way for the new parking Lot B. As well as the existing
transformers that feed Concourse A are in the footprint of the future Concourse A so those will
have to be relocated. Ms. Holton presented a diagram showing the locations of the transformers
and pole farms. MNAA will reroute all the cabling to a new safe location and hope to never have
to touch it again, never say never. MNAA has estimates from NES for Concourse A work for $1.6M
NTE. The $10M for the TARI is an estimate of $10M NTE by engineering. MNAA must pay NES up
front so there will not be a delay. TARI 3.1 is under contract by Civil that the Board approved in

April, will start working on it soon. MNAA is being proactive for TARI 3.1 and 3.2.
Vice Chair Joslin asked if NES wants their money up front. Ms. Holton replied they will do a design,
and then an estimate and they will invoice us for the estimate. MNAA will pay it and track their

actual costs, and normally we get money back, but sometimes they are owed money back.

Page 2 of 7



Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

Chair Granbery asked if it is discounted based on future use. Ms. Holton replied that the work
itself is not discounted based on future use. Mr. Robert Ramsey, EVP, Chief Development Officer,
stated for customer-based utility work of this size, the customer pays upfront for the initial work,
and have a discounted rate or rate structure that is not incorporated into that. It is a discounted
rate because we are a large commercial utility customer but we must make improvements. Chair
Granbery stated based on the discounts, we can look 20 years out and get money back. Mr.
Ramsey replied yes. Vice Chair Joslin stated he thought the Board had recently approved that
rate. Mr. Ramsey stated yes, we did, it is on a large customer contract. President Kreulen replied

it was 11.6kw, about a 50% discount for being a large user.

Ms. Holton requested that the Operations Committee recommend to the Board of Commissioners
that it authorize the Chair and President & CEO to pay multiple NES invoices impacted by the New
Horizon | and Il programs for $11,600,000 NTE.

Chair Granbery asked for a motion to approve as presented. Vice Chair Joslin made a motion and

Commissioner Sullivan seconded the motion.

Chair Granbery asked Ms. Saxman for a roll call:
Chair Granbery - Yes
Vice Chair Joslin — Yes
Commissioner Sullivan - Yes

The motion passed with a vote of 3 to 0.

2. Concourse A Builder’s Risk Insurance

President Kreulen introduced Kristen Deuben, VP, Finance, to brief the Commissioners on the
Concourse A Builder’s Risk Insurance. Ms. Deuben stated on March 15, 2023 the Board approved
the CEO to execute Builder’s risk policies for Concourse D Extension & BHS projects. At that time,
President Kreulen stated we would come back for approval as other projects were closer to
starting. As a reminder, Builder’s risk insurance protects owners and contractors in the event of
a direct physical loss or damage to a project. Builder’s risk policies are purchased on a project-

specific basis. The estimated cost of the reconstruction of the Builder’s risk policy for the

Page3of 7



Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

reconstruction of Concourse A is 0.48% of the contract value ($855M) estimated about $4.1M.

The proposed premiums will be paid by the individual projects.

Vice Chair Joslin asked if the contractors are putting up their own bonds, and if so, why are we
doing a builder’s risk. Ms. Deuben replied in case anything comes through that damages the
actual project. It is not a performance bond that the contractor has, this would be in case the
roof leaks, or something is damaged after the fact. MNAA keeps a policy, and because it is our
policy, we can issue it. If we had the contractor do the policy, then we would have to work through
the contractor to work with their insurance policy. Vice Chair Joslin stated they must guarantee
their work, if the roof leaks, they are responsible. Ms. Deuben stated there is a performance bond
which is separate from the actual physical damage to the property. President Kreulen stated
when we had the risk analysis done from our insurance program, it is cheaper for the airport to
buy the builder’s risk, because the contractors tend to make money off the airport if we let them

buy it.

Chair Granbery stated this is 100% a building industry standard. He asked if MNAA is still using
Mr. Davidson. President Kreulen replied yes, he works with Ms. Valerie Hamilton, our Risk

Manager.

Ms. Deuben recommended the Operations Committee recommend to the Board of
Commissioners that it: 1) approve the Builder’s Risk policy for the Reconstruction of Concourse A
at $4,100,000 NTE, and 2) authorize the President & CEO to execute Builder’s Risk policy through
Marsh.

Chair Granbery asked for a motion to approve as presented. Vice Chair Joslin made a motion and

Commissioner Sullivan seconded the motion.

Chair Granbery asked Ms. Saxman for a roll call:
Chair Granbery - Yes
Vice Chair Joslin - Yes
Commissioner Sullivan - Yes

The motion passed with a vote of 3 to 0.

Page 4 of 7



VI.

Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

INFORMATION ITEMS

1.

BNA Development Update

President Kreulen stated the Concourse D Extension completion is 20 days from today and will be
completed on July 2, 2025. The MNAA Staff is planning a celebration event on the evening of July

1, 2025. All gates and concessions will be operational July 8, 2025.

President Kreulen stated Concourse A Ramp Paving has 1,307 out of 1,565 panels placed with
substantial completion on July 21, 2025. It should be completed July 21, 2025. He stated TDOT
has opened Donelson. The incentive MNAA provided was productive and the terms included
damages if they are not as fast as they should be. There is a lot of stuff they still need to do so we
will be getting money back. The TNC drop-offs/rematch began on June 2, 2025 and has been
successful. We received several comments but with 5K vehicles a day, we have reduced circling

the airport. We are happy about that.

Chair Granbery asked if all the concessions on Concourse D Extension will be operational on July
8, 2026. President Kreulen replied yes, and all concessions plan to be open for visitors on the July

1 event; they may not be selling anything that evening, but guests can visit.

President Kreulen stated on Concourse D we have been using Gates 6 and 7 because we closed
some Concourse C gates due to the Baggage Handling System. He presented several photographs
of the connector moving walkway, the record node, and the outdoor terrace. He stated Gate 9 is

being relocated. Our first outdoor lounge is looking great, and we are excited about that.

Commissioner Glover stated she was traveling on Memorial Day weekend and arrived back at D7.
President Kreulen replied yes, D6 and 7 are open now due to C gates closed to build out the new

Baggage Handling System, so BNA traded some gates with Southwest.

Commissioner Farner asked if we are communicating about why we moved to the new drop-off
area for Uber/Lyft. President Kreulen replied yes, we put out some communications early and
plan to put out more information. Right now, we communicated that we are saving miles, saving

gas, reducing emissions, and we are doing twice as many vehicles as we have been doing because

Page 5of 7



Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

it is so fast. He stated he has been walking and timing it. Commissioner Farner asked about taxis,
and if they are in the same place. President Kreulen replied no. If passengers do not like Uber/Lyft
which are approximately 540 feet from the front door, which is 2 minutes, 30 seconds to walk,
they can take a taxi, limo or black car. It is less than 50 feet from the front door. President Kreulen
explained that Uber/Lyft are now making only one trip, there were 3.5M trips at BNA last year,
and now we reduced that to 1.75M with rematch. President Kreulen stated we will continue to

reemphasize this to the community.

2. JWN Development Update

President Kreulen stated he has very good news to share for JWN. Parcel 1, DN LLC, has utilities
installed and foundation and footings complete and are halfway complete with framing. Parcel
6/7, Jet Access, is heading to permitting. Parcel 8/9, Jet Right, submitted a 7460 for approval.

Parcel 10, MNPD, completed site work, and we should see steel erected in the very near future.

President Kreulen stated Contour is working on the Temporary Use and Occupancy permit and
still waiting on sprinkler system parts on Hangar 3. The 2" FBO Atlantic Aviation Development is
expecting a 30% design review by end of June, and they are excited and moving forward to

becoming a future tenant.

Vice Chair Joslin asked where the fuel farm would be relocated. President Kreulen replied they
are still trying to analyze the best location to place it. Vice Chair Joslin stated it was one time on
the South end where those open-air hangars are and he felt that was not the best place for it.
President Kreulen stated he was in Atlanta and ran into Aeroplex and they asked how it is going
and let them know that we have executed everything we had going. He agreed that at one time
Aeroplex had recommended moving down on the South end. He does not think that is where

Atlantic is looking but we will come back in the near future.

Vice Chair Joslin reminded everyone that Taxiway Bravo is needed.

Commissioner Farner asked about the status of the project that had the compaction issue.
President Kreulen replied that is Metro and they went back to using good rock or some mix of the

two and now pouring foundation. Chair Granbery asked how many hangars have their own fuel

Page 6 of 7



Meeting Minutes of the MNAA and MPC Operations, Engineering & Strategic Planning Committees
June 11, 2025

farm. President Kreulen replied that the majority of them will have their own tanks. Chair

Granbery asked if Metro would. President Kreulen replied no, not Metro.

President Kreulen concluded the presentation of the informational items.

VIL. ADJOURN

There being no further business brought before the Operations Committee, Chair Granbery adjourned

LonA L

Andrew W. Byrd Board Secreta

the meeting at 9:23 a.m.

Page 7 of 7



